
Electoral Matters Committee  
 

Dear Member, 
 

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Electoral Matters Committee to be held as 
follows for the transaction of the business indicated. 
David Wilcock 

Monitoring Officer 

 
DATE: Wednesday, 28 July 2021 

 
TIME:  1.30 pm 

 
VENUE: Microsoft Teams Meeting 

 
AGENDA 

 

1   Apologies for Absence  

 

 

2   Declarations of Interest  

 

 

3   To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held 

on 17 March 2021.  

 

(Pages 1 - 4) 

4   Matters Arising  

 

 

5   Feedback from the 6 May 2021 Local, City Mayor and GM Mayor 

Elections  

 

(Pages 5 - 6) 

6   Review of Parliamentary constituencies  

 

(Pages 7 - 12) 

7   Verbal update on 2021 Annual Canvass  

 

 

8   Any other business  

 

 

9   Date and Time of the next meeting - Wednesday 15 September 
2021 at 1.30pm  

 

 

 
Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 3626 

Sara Bennett, Head of Elections E-Mail: elections@salford.gov.uk 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 

                                                                                  

ELECTORAL MATTERS COMMITTEE 

17 March 2021 

Meeting commenced: 13:30 

Meeting ended:  14:20             

Officers:                

Jacquie Russell, Elliot Hogan, Tom Stannard, Karen Fox 

1.          APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Cllr Gina Reynolds, Cllr Weir, Cllr McIntyre, Cllr Warmisham, Cllr Morris, Cllr Cammel, 

Cllr Warner, Cllr Merry, Cllr Hinds, Cllr R Jones, Cllr Boshell 

EH tried to phone in MEN reporter. 

Call failed twice. Told to move on. 

No questions and confirmed as correct record. 

 

No matters arising from minutes. 

 

Reporting on Nominations Process. 

 

JR talk through highlights. Report members sets out key dates we are now working 

towards. 

Confirms local election until fallow year in 2025. 

Nomination packs available. Can be posted out or collected. Available on website. 

Nominations delivered to the civic centre from 30 March, but before 4pm 8 April. 

Make appointments. 

Briefing sessions explained and confirmed. 

 

LANCASTER – Can pick up multiple and are registers included? 

EH Yes  

 

R GARRIDO – Collecting 10am FRIDAY all nom packs and registers.  

 

JR Use front steps entrance. 

 

SAUNDERS – Asking for repeat of candidate briefing times. 

JR confirmed these. 

 

MULLEN – DO they have to hand in signed copies by hand? 

JR – Yes 

 

DICKMAN – Team prefer less people bringing in multiple? 

Update on guidance for people entering tower blocks? 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



2 

 

EH confirmed agents bringing multiple packs back would be best under covid rules. 

JR update on tower blocks, will  return to councillors when more information known. 

 

DICKMAN – one person per tower block, is this to protect each other? If people living 

together go into a tower block together? 

JR form a covid regulation view it is to protect the residents also, but confirmation 

once we know more. 

 

MULLEN – never on the same floor at the same time as wife, is that upholding the 

rules? 

JR – we will get clarity on this and get back to you. 

 

KING – one agent for all 3 candidates, Can subscribers sign for all 3 of a parties 

candidates? 

EH and KF – Yes 

 

AUGUST – can occupy spaces in pairs. In line with covid regulations. Important not to 

lone work. 

 

WILSON – Urging to remind people that Covid is still the most important factor.  

 

SAUNDERS – Repeat Kings question. 

EH confirmed. 

 

BROCKLEHURST – Agents, can other people in agents household nominate. 

EH confirmed yes. 

 

JOLLEY – Warn about 4 nominations, make sure only 3 per party 

 

DICKMAN – Can candidate propose themselves? 

KF – Yes 

 

JOLLEY – Thought that cannot nominate yourself? 

KF – Yes, it is not common practice, but yes. 

 

TS ask KF to just confirm if that is a recent change or always been the case.  

KF always been the case. 

 

Report on 2021 elections 

 

JR confirm we have secured single site location at AJ Bell. Currently working on 

arrangements. 

 

LANCASTER - Polling Station Changes? 

JOLLEY – Castle Community Centre changed?  

JR – confirmed stations. 

EH – Any individual stations need discussing please contact the elections office. 

Page 2



3 

 

 

HUMPHREYS – Counts over 3 days, not on same evening? 

JR – confirms count times and estimated declaration times. 

HUMPHREYS – AJ Bell tight for space. How will it work? 

JR – currently signing off on infection control layout and adding additional space.  

HUMPHREYS – Does every candidate have the right to attend because of limited 

space? 

JR – Every candidate has the right to attend, but we are working through 

arrangements for physical and digital scrutiny measures. Will include some restrictions 

who can access what space at what time. 

 

DAWSON – Lateral flow test for all candidates and agents? Where will this be done? 

JR – Currently working with public health on testing arrangements. Looking for staff 

having 2 lateral flow test leading up to election and our position will be to encourage 

candidates and agents to take 2 tests in lead up to the day. 

 

TS – Advise is for people intending to attend count to not leave testing until the day of 

the count. Encouraging to make use of existing sites. 

More guidelines in due course. 

 

SAUNDERS – How formal is lateral flow requirement going to be? Will people need 

proof? 

Sabbath on Saturday? 

Nightingale Manchester closing, will this help for space? 

JR – Formality of testing, discussion with director of public health ongoing. For staff it 

will be a requirement. 

GM Count is only occurring there for Manchester. 

Saturday count, yes our plans are still to continue with both mayoral counts. Still 

having conversations about what adjustments we can put in place, but we are bound 

by Monday deadlines. 

 

DAWSON – When cllrs been elected, swearing in process. Tom will need to meet with 

60 councillors to sign documents. Will this be done in an office as usual? 

TS – Have started to plan for this. 

JR – unlikely to be in Toms office, but will be at civic centre, Salford suite. By 

appointment. 

 

 

LANCASTER – Declared meeting closed. 

 

 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



 Part 1 - Open to the Public 
 

ITEM NO. 5 

 
 

REPORT OF THE RETURNING OFFICER. 

 
 

TO:  ELECTORAL MATTERS COMMITTEE ON  
28 JULY 2021 

 
 
TITLE: Feedback from the 6 May 2021 Local, City Mayor and GM Mayor Elections  

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 

 
That consideration be given to the feedback received from elected members and officers 
in respect of the running of the 6 May 2021 Local, City Mayor and GM Mayor elections. 

 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
This report provides Members of the Electoral Matters Committee with details of the key issues 
received in feedback from elected members and officers in respect of the running of the 6 May 

2021 Local, City Mayor and GM Mayor elections. 

 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: N/A 

 
KEY DECISION:  NO 

 
DETAILS: 
 

1. Introduction 

 
1.1 Following any election, common practice is to review the running of the election in order 

to enable improvements to be made for future elections. 
 

1.2 This report provides details of key issues arising from the 6 May Local, City Mayor and 

GM Mayor elections. In addition, members are encouraged to provide any additional 
feedback. 

 

 
2. Key Issues 

 

2.1 2021 elections were amongst the most complex delivered in Salford – Local all outs, City 
Mayoral and GM Mayoral.  With multiple voting and counting arrangements.  A global 

pandemic – and additional COVID safety measures.  All of which complicated the 
planning needed and arrangements for electoral administration and political scrutiny.  

 

 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



 
2.2 Positive outcomes 

 

 Political SPOCs – to act as an initial liaison between RO and his staff and political 

candidates and observers.  Helped to manage changes on the day, tensions, 
concerns, queries.  This would be a recommendation that this be kept for future 
elections. 

 On line training – ensured general role training to a large number of people in an 
efficient way.  

 On-line briefings for candidates and agents – wide range of information shared. 

 COVID safety measures – social distancing, additional temp building.  MCC 
commented that Salford’s procedures ‘ left Manchester CC to shame’.  Public Health 

support was invaluable.  No positive cases were reported linked to elections. Kept 
everyone safe.  Temporary building enabled us to keep the election at a single site 
instead of multiple locations. 

 
2.3  Improvements 
 

 Ballot box drop off – increased time taken.  Direct link to increased number of ballot 
boxes, social distancing, and additional check on paperwork.  Review for subsequent 

years, with possible need to increase staff at drop off points.  

 Training session on ballot papers and ballot paper accounts – limited opportunity to 
share paperwork in advance due to social distancing and remote working 

requirements.  RE-instate face-to-face training and hard copy packs in advance.  

 GM forms and paperwork: remains confusing and over-complicated, Paperwork arrived 

late in election week, limiting the opportunity to train staff.  Multiple forms for the same 
information – increasing the risk of errors.  

 Concerns about a small number of polling stations – cleanliness, safety, suitability.  But 

only 2 stations out of 143. Full review of polling stations planned for 2022. 

 OPV sessions – improved processes introduced quite late, embed these in future 

years.  Additional scanners to ensure efficiency 
 

 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: N/A 

 
EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: N/A 

 
ASSESSMENT OF RISK: Low 

 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A 

 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A 

 
OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED N/A 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: Sara Bennett  TEL NO: 0161 793 3626 

 
WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: All 

Page 6



 1 

Part 1: Open to the Public – Item No. 6 

 

REPORT OF  

The Electoral Registration Officer 

 

TO 

MP’s 

ON 

Friday 2 July 2021 

 

TITLE: Review of Parliamentary constituencies 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS: That consideration be given to the proposed Parliamentary 

Boundary changes to be implemented in 2023. 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: This report provides information and proposals for the 

changes to Parliamentary Boundaries for Salford. 

 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: No 

 

 

KEY DECISION: NO 

 

 

DETAILS: 

 
1. Introduction 

 
1.1 This report provides details of the proposed Parliamentary Boundary changes to be implemented 

in 2023.  

 
1.2 The specific changes to Salford’s boundaries and the wards that are taken on and given away to 

neighbouring authorities at Parliamentary Elections is explained. 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



 2 

2. Key Issues 

 

2.1 The key issues to note are as follows: 

 
Salford will still contain two of its own constituencies, renamed as Worsley and Eccles CC and 

Salford BC. However, for the first time we will have a ward from another authority in one o f our 
constituencies [Astley Mossley Common ward]. 

 Kersal & Broughton Park and Broughton wards currently fall under Manchester’s Blackley and 

Broughton constituency; however under the proposals this will change.  

 Broughton ward will revert to falling under Salford BC. 

 Kersal & Broughton Park ward would fall under Bury South BC. 

 3 wards, Little Hulton, Walkden North & Walkden South will fall under Bolton Council’s 

Bolton South and Walkden BC. 

 We will take on Astley Mossley Common ward from Wigan and that will go into Worsley and 

Eccles CC. 

 Swinton & Wardley and Eccles wards will move into Worsley and Eccles CC, having 

previously been under the current Salford & Eccles constituency. 

 

3. Practical impact on Parliamentary Elections in Salford. 

 

3.1 During Parliamentary elections we will give 4 wards away to Bury and Bolton councils, and take 

on 1 ward from Wigan; we currently only give 2 wards away to Manchester council totalling 

19,153 electors. 

 

3.2 Under the proposals we will give -  3 wards totalling 27,827 electors to Bolton council. 

     1 ward totalling 9,577 electors to Bury council.  

And we take on 1 ward totalling 10,219 electors from Wigan.  

Overall we will have 1 less ward to count at the Parliamentary elections than we currently do and around 
8000 net electorate less to count. 

 
We will need to liaise with Wigan, Bolton and Bury Council instead of Manchester. However we should 

still be responsible for setting up the same amount of polling stations/staff as we currently do.  
We would provide our registers to Bolton & Bury council for the 4 wards that go to them, as well as 
using their forms/processes at the stations; however we will arrange these stations/staff. These 4 wards 

will be counted by their respective host authorities with the ballot boxes going to their count venues. 
We will take the register from Wigan for Astley Mossley Common and be responsible for counting these 
ballot boxes at our count. However, Wigan should still provide their polling stations and staff.  

 
 

  

Page 8



 3 

4. Political Makeup 

 

4.1 Overall we do not anticipate any significant change in the political makeup of our 2 

constituencies.  

 
5. Summary 

5.1 The new rules mean there'll be substantial changes to constituencies in England. These include 
reducing the number of constituencies from 650 to 600 and making sure each constituency 
contains a similar number of registered electors. The number of constituencies in the North West 
will decrease from 75 to 73. The number of Wards in Salford will drop from 20 to 17 with Salford 
giving away 4 Wards and taking on 1 Ward. These changes will commence from the next 
parliamentary election after 2023. 

5.2 The BCE will try to have regard to local ties, geographic factors, local government boundaries, 
existing constituencies and minimising disruption caused by the proposed changes. Local 
government wards are used as the building blocks for proposed constituencies but they will 
consider splitting a ward where there is a strong case for doing so. 

 

Appendix 1-    Map of proposals 
 

Appendix 2-    Proposed Constituencies and Wards make up 
 

 

 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: N/A 

 

 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:  N/A 

 

 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: Low 

 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A 

 

 

Page 9



 4 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A 

 

 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:  N/A 

 

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A 

 

 
 

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:  N/A 

 

 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED:  N/A 

 

 

CONTACT OFFICER: Sara Bennett    TEL NO: 0161 793 3626 

 

 
 

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: All 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Page 10



 5 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
Appendix 1 
 
New Constituencies Map 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 11



 6 

 
 

 

 
Appendix 2 
 

Proposals for Salford: 
 

Salford Borough Constituency 

 Blackfriars & Trinity 

 Broughton 

 Claremont 

 Ordsall 

 Pendlebury & Clifton 

 Pendleton & Charlestown 

 Quays 

 Swinton Park 

 Weaste & Seedley 

Worsley and Eccles County Constituency 

 Astley Mosley Common 

 Barton & Winton 

 Boothstown & Ellenbrook 

 Cadishead & Lower Irlam 

 Eccles 

 Higher Irlam & Peel Green 

 Swinton & Wardley 

 Worsley & Westwood Park 

Bury South Borough Constituency 

 Kersal & Broughton Park 

Bolton South and Walkden Borough Constituency 

 Little Hulton 

 Walkden South 

 Walkden North 

 

Page 12


	Agenda
	3 To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 17 March 2021.
	5 Feedback from the 6 May 2021 Local, City Mayor and GM Mayor Elections
	6 Review of Parliamentary constituencies

